70523.7

70523.7

No. 70523-7-I

COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION ONE

STATE OF WASHINGTON, Appellant, Cross Respondent.

v.

NICHOLAS LONGO, Respondent, Cross Petitioner.



BRIEF OF APPELLANT

DAVID S. McEACHRAN, Whatcom County Prosecuting Attorney By KIMBERLY A.THULIN Appellate Deputy Prosecutor Attorney for Appellant WSBA #21210/ADMIN #91075

Whatcom County Prosecutor's Office 311 Grand Avenue, Second Floor Bellingham, WA 98225 (360) 676-6784

A. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. The trial court erred in finding district court's suppression order in the civil forfeiture hearing was a full and final resolution of the issues regarding the validity of the search warrant.
- 2. The trial court erred in finding that the issues before district court in the civil forfeiture proceeding were the same issues before the superior court in the suppression hearing.
- 3. The trial court erred in finding that district court's decision in the forfeiture hearing was on the merits, after a full hearing, and that giving collateral estoppel effect to district court's decision in this criminal case is consistent with the State's public policy considerations.
- 4. The trial court erred concluding the superior court in this case was collaterally estopped from reviewing the issue regarding the validity of the search warrant due to district court's prior decision in the forfeiture proceeding.

B. ISSUES PERTAINING TO APPELLANT'S ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- Whether superior court erred concluding a district court's decision in a civil forfeiture hearing collaterally estopped superior court from considering the merits of a motion to suppress in this criminal case.
- 2. Whether superior court erred concluding district court previously fully and fairly litigated the validity of the search warrant in the forfeiture hearing, that the forfeiture hearing resulted in a final judgment or that the county prosecutor and City of Bellingham sit in privity with one another where forfeiture and criminal procedures are separate and distinct, the parties have different interests and the county prosecutor has no ability to ensure the district court forfeiture decision is fully litigated on appeal when the City of Bellingham may be encumbered by statutory financial constraints and concerns.
- 3. Whether superior court erred concluding its decision to preclude the State from litigating the merits of a motion to

suppress in a criminal case based on a decision in a forfeiture hearing is just and consistent with public policy considerations in the State of Washington.

C. STATEMENT OF FACTS

On September 13th, 2012 Nicholas Longo was charged with manufacturing of a controlled substance and possession of a controlled substance as proscribed by Wash. Rev. Code Ann. § 69.50.401(2)(c) (West). Supp CP ____(sub nom 6, Information). While making contact with residents at 2215 Electric Avenue, Bellingham police officers noticed the windows of the residence were covered and there was condensation on the basement windows even though it was 72 degrees, warm and dry outside. CP 4-5. While at the front door, officers detected a strong odor of marijuana emanating from the residence. <u>Id</u>.

When Bellingham Police Officer Medlen knocked on the door of the residence and the door opened, there was a strong odor of raw marijuana coming from inside this home. CP 154-327 (see, warrant transcript prepared by Longo). Based on Officer Medlen's training for the detection of marijuana and grow operations, he reasonably suspected a grow operation in the residence. <u>Id.</u>, CP 4-5. A search warrant was

requested and granted. CP 4-5, see also CP 154-327¹, search warrant transcript. Officers discovered 180 marijuana plants growing inside the residence in a sophisticated operation with glow lights, watering system, vents and timers. Several pounds of packaged marijuana along with packing materials and a digital scale were found in an upstairs bedroom closet. <u>Id.</u> Longo admitted he was responsible for the marijuana grow operation. <u>Id</u>.

Following charges, Nicholas Longo moved to suppress evidence in this criminal prosecution pursuant to Cr R 3.6 asserting that the doctrine of collateral estoppel precluded the State from litigating the validity of the search warrant executed in this case because the issue had previously been litigated in a civil forfeiture proceeding in district court. Longo had previously successfully moved to suppress the evidence obtained pursuant to the search of his home in a civil forfeiture proceeding against the City of Bellingham. CP 154-327.

Longo asserted in this case that superior court in his criminal case was bound by the district court decision in his forfeiture proceeding. Longo's attorney strategically sought to litigate the validity of the warrant

¹ CP 154-327 refers to Declaration of Longo's Counsel as to record of Proceedings in the forfeiture case. The document contains three transcripts of the forfeiture hearing itself dated 11/2/12, 1/3/13 and 1/18/13 in reverse order. Reference to those transcripts will be by report of proceeding number and date of hearing. This document also contains the warrant transcript, the Forfeiture hearing Order and subsequent withdrawal by the City of Bellingham's appeal and various other documents filed in the civil forfeiture proceeding.

in the forfeiture proceeding first because the attorney fee provision of the forfeiture statute placed him in a better position to litigate the suppression issue he wished to raise. CP 154-327 (RP 9 (1/3/13, transcript of forfeiture proceedings.)) In his forfeiture proceeding Longo asserted the search warrant was not predicated on probable cause because officers did not investigate or advise the magistrate whether Longo was a medical marijuana provider pursuant to the analysis set forth in an unpublished decision of <u>U.S. v. Kynatson</u> et al, no.CR 12-0016 WFN. After hearing argument and consideration submissions, district court suppressed evidence found pursuant to the search warrant and dismissed the forfeiture proceeding. The City of Bellingham filed a notice of appeal of the forfeiture proceeding but soon after, withdrew its appeal. CP 154-327 (Order withdrawing appeal of forfeiture hearing suppression order).

On May 6th, 2013, Superior Court Judge Garrett granted Longo's request to suppress evidence determining the State was estopped and bound by the prior decision litigated in the civil forfeiture hearing. Following a Motion on Reconsideration, further briefing and argument, Judge Garrett supplemented the criminal case record with the transcript provided by Mr. Longo from the prior district court civil forfeiture hearing and denied reconsideration. See, CP 154-327. Judge Garrett determined, despite public policy considerations, that she was bound by district court's

decision in its civil forfeiture hearing where the same issue was fully and finally decided on the merits and therefore the State of Washington was collaterally estopped from re-litigating the validity of the search warrant in Longo's criminal case. CP 333-332. The State filed a timely Notice of Appeal and Longo cross appealed. Supp CP (sub nom 50).

Due to the language of the superior court order, this Court questioned the appealability as a matter of right of the Suppression Order. After requesting a response from the parties, the Court determined the suppression order was appealable as a matter of right because the decision effectively ended the State's ability to prosecute Mr. Longo. The State now appeals.

D. ARGUMENT

1. Superior court erred concluding it was bound pursuant to the collateral estoppel doctrine, in a criminal case by a prior decision litigated in a civil forfeiture hearing, essentially depriving the State of its ability to prosecute Mr. Longo for his crimes.

Application of collateral estoppel doctrine to preclude the State of Washington from prosecuting Nicholas Longo for his criminal conduct based on a decision in a prior civil forfeiture hearing is unjust for policy reasons. Civil forfeiture hearings and criminal prosecutions are separate, often parallel proceedings that serve distinct and different purposes. The fact that property may be subject to forfeiture requiring an expedited hearing determining legal issues that may be raised in a criminal prosecution should not have any bearing on the State of Washington's ability to file and hold an individual responsible for their criminal behavior in a separate and distinct criminal prosecution. <u>State v. Dupard</u>, 93 Wash. 2d 268, 609 P.2d 961 (1980). Superior court's decision in this case should therefore be reversed.

The collateral estoppel doctrine is founded on the Fifth Amendment's guarantee against double jeopardy. <u>State v. Williams</u>, 132 Wash. 2d 248, 253, 937 P.2d 1052 (1997)1997). Collateral estoppel or issue preclusion may bar relitigation of an issue of fact or mixed fact and law that was essential to the previous decision, as conclusive in a subsequent proceeding involving the same parties. 14A Karl B. Tegland, WASHINGTON PRACTICE, Civil Procedure sec.35.32, at 475 (1st ed.2003).

The doctrine of collateral estoppel requires a showing that (1) the issue decided in the earlier civil proceeding is identical to the issue raised in this criminal prosecution; (2) the prior civil proceeding must have ended in a final judgment on the merits; (3) the party against who the doctrine is asserted must have been a party or in privity with a party in the prior adjudication; and (4) the application of the doctrine does not work an

injustice against the party to whom the doctrine is applied. <u>Williams</u>, 132 Wash. 2d at 254. Whether collateral estoppel bars a claim is a question of law reviewed de novo. <u>Lemond v. State</u>, <u>Dep't of Licensing</u>, 143 Wash. App. 797, 803, 180 P.3d 829 (2008)2008).

a. The legislature did not intend nor does our State constitution require that the State choose between bringing a remedial civil forfeiture hearing or a criminal prosecution.

In <u>State v. Barnes</u>, 85 Wash. App. 638, 932 P.2d 669 (1997), the Court held that a prior summary judgment dismissing the State's forfeiture action against Barnes did not have double jeopardy or collateral effect on the subsequent criminal prosecution. On appeal, Barnes did not sufficiently demonstrate the issue he wished to preclude the State from litigating was identical or was previously fully litigated. Nonetheless, even if Barnes did meet this burden, the court concluded, "compelling public policy considerations supported the trial court's refusal to apply the doctrine" given that the "purpose of the criminal code is to protect the community from "conduct that inflicts or threatens substantial harm to individual or public interests." <u>Id.</u> at 640, *citing* RCW 9A.04.020, RCW 9.94A.010(4). Whereas, a civil forfeiture action satisfies a very different remedial purpose; in Barnes case, to forfeit financial gains traceable to criminal profiteering conduct pursuant to RCW9A.82.100(5)(c).

Predicated on these considerations, the court determined employing collateral estoppel under these circumstances would be unjust. <u>Barnes</u> is dispositive and demonstrates as a matter of law superior court erred and should be reversed.

On appeal, Barnes also asserted RCW 9A.82.100(13) precluded the State from bringing a criminal action based on the same acts relied upon in an earlier civil action. The Court found in contrast to Barnes argument, that the statute in fact permitted prosecution for both civil and criminal actions. Subsequent to the statute's enactment, there were several unsuccessful attempts to add language to require prosecutors to elect between bringing a civil or criminal action. <u>Id.</u> at 655, *citing*, 2 House Journal, State of Wash. 1858 (1985); 2 Senate Journal, State of Wash. 1677 (1985). The Court concluded the legislature's failure to amend this statute to require prosecutors to choose civil or criminal remedies demonstrated the legislature intended to provide prosecutors with the ability to bringing both civil and criminal actions based on the same conduct. <u>Id.</u>

Later the same year <u>Barnes</u> was decided, our Supreme Court determined in <u>State v. Catlett</u>, 133 Wash. 2d 355, 945 P.2d 700 (1997), consistent with <u>Barnes</u>, that the double jeopardy protections of the 5th Amendment of the United States Constitution and Art. 1 §9 of the

Washington Constitution were not implicated by forfeiture proceedings and would not bar subsequent criminal prosecution for drug offense where property used to facilitate, promote the drug offense is forfeited in a prior civil forfeiture hearing.

The <u>Catlett</u> court found the pursuant to WA. Const. Art I, §9 forfeiture proceedings under RCW 69.50.505 do not result in punishment to which jeopardy attaches because forfeiture proceedings are civil in rem proceedings that target the property, not the individual. The Court confirmed forfeiture hearings constitute a civil remedial process that targets property wherein an expedited hearing is held either administratively or if leave is properly sought, in a court of appropriate jurisdiction. Catlett concluded criminal prosecutions were distinguishable, serving a very different purpose to hold persons who commit crimes criminally responsible,

Whatcom County Superior Court essentially circumvented our state Supreme Court's decisions in <u>Catlett</u> to hold, even though double jeopardy principles are not implicated by a remedial forfeiture hearing, that the doctrine collateral estoppel may still preclude the State from litigating legal issues in a criminal prosecution if the same issues are allegedly fully litigated in a prior civil forfeiture proceeding.

Superior court placed too much emphasis on whether the same issue being raised in the criminal action was fully litigated in the prior civil forfeiture hearing wholly ignoring whether the issue was fairly litigated in the forfeiture hearing, truly resulted in a final judgment and the public policy considerations and dispositive state jurisprudence on this matter. Superior court erred and should be reversed.

> b. Longo's suppression issue was not fairly litigated, did not result in a final judgment on the merits, nor did the City of Bellingham and county prosecutor sit in privity with one another in the prior forfeiture proceeding. The State therefore should not be precluded from litigating the merits of Longo's suppression motion in this criminal case.

Property at issue in a forfeiture hearing may be seized after a showing the forfeiture was lawful by a preponderance of the evidence for any number of reasons pursuant to the statute-including whether the property at issue was or is intended to be used for illegal drug activity or represents the proceeds of illegal drug sales, even without showing a connection between the property and a particular person. <u>State v. Catlett</u>, 133 Wn.2d at 312, RCW 69.50.505, *see also* <u>United States v. Ursery</u>, 518 U.S. 267, 116 S. Ct. 2135, 135 L. Ed. 2d 549 (1996). The State drug forfeiture statute provides the exclusive mechanism for forfeiting property used in proscribed crime and sets for the exclusive manner for a claimant to file a claim to return the property. <u>State v. Alaway</u>, 64 Wash. App. 796, 801, 828 P.2d 591 (1992)1992), RCW 69.50.505.

•

The statute requires the seizing agency to provide notice to interested parties within 15 days of the seizure. RCW 69.50.505(3). A person asserting a property interest then must file notice claiming an interest within 45 days or forfeit the property. RCW 69.50.405(3). Thereafter, a hearing and opportunity to be heard will be held. RCW 69.50.505(5). The expedited forfeiture hearing is an administrative action unless the claimant moves to have the proceeding heard in the court of appropriate jurisdiction pursuant to the rules of civil procedure. RCW 69.50.505(5).

Contrary to Longo's assertion, district court while seemingly fully considering the merits of the issue Longo presented, did not fairly consider whether the search warrant was predicated on probable cause under the abuse of discretion standard. Instead, district court overreached in the forfeiture proceeding at Longo's request, to review whether there was probable cause to issue the search warrant de novo. See, CP 154-327 (Declaration of Counsel as to record in Forfeiture Proceeding, RP 9 (1/3/13) Forfeiture hearing transcript).

Under Washington forfeiture law, "probable cause requires the existence of reasonable grounds for suspicion supported by circumstances

sufficiently strong to warrant a person of ordinary caution in the belief.." that the property was used or intended to be used in violation of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act. <u>Barlindal v. City of Bonney Lake</u>, 84 Wash. App. 135, 141, 925 P.2d 1289 (1996)1996). In a criminal case similarly, the issuance of a warrant is deemed proper when a reasonably prudent person would understand from the facts in the affidavit that a crime has been committed and the evidence of that crime would be found at the place to be searched. <u>State v. Garcia</u>, 63 Wash. App. 868, 871, 824 P.2d 1220 (1992)1992).

Information providing probable cause in support of a warrant need be gleaned entirely from its contents. <u>State v. Neth</u>, 165 Wash. 2d 177, 196 P.3d 658 (2008). A magistrate's decision that a warrant should issue is an exercise of judicial discretion that is reviewed for abuse of discretion. <u>State v. Jackson</u>, 102 Wash. 2d 432, 688 P.2d 136 (1984). Great deference is given to the issuing magistrate's determination of probable cause. <u>Id.</u> All doubts should be resolved in favor of the validity of the warrant. <u>State v. Fisher</u>, 96 Wash. 2d 962, 639 P.2d 743 (1982).

District court erred by reviewing the search warrant de novo in the context of the forfeiture proceeding to determine suppression of the property was warranted. By employing the wrong standard of review, district court's determination in the forfeiture hearing, which is by statute

limited and narrow in focus, was overbroad and the probable cause issue while extensively litigated, was not fairly litigated such that it is appropriate to give collateral estoppel effect to district court's decision.

In circumstances where the Court's subject matter jurisdiction is limited, a judgment entered that contravenes that limitation will not have preclusive effect. Other Washington cases support this interpretation. *See*, <u>Mead v. Park Place Properties</u>, 37 Wn.App. 403, 681 P.2d 256 (1984) (superior court's authority in an unlawful detainer action is limited to determining the right to possession and issues incident to that right. Preclusive effect will not arise from an unlawful detainer action when the parties are involved in a subsequent litigation in a case under the broad general jurisdiction of the court). *See also*, <u>Kennedy v. City of Seattle</u>, 94 Wash. 2d 376, 617 P.2d 713 (1980)a criminal misdemeanor case after finding the ordinance unconstitutional.)

Similarly here, district court's authority was limited pursuant to RCW 69.50.505 to determining whether the property at issue was subject to forfeiture. RCW 69.50.505(5). To the extent district court exceeded those limits; its decision should not be given preclusive effect.

District court's decision was also not a final decision on the merits for purposes of applying the doctrine of collateral estoppel in this criminal case. While district court rendered a final decision suppressing evidence, the City of Bellingham was likely hamstrung to fully litigate the issue on appeal in light of the attorney fee and cost provisions of the forfeiture statute explaining potentially why, despite the City's disagreement with the district court decision; it opted to withdraw its appeal. See, RCW 69.50.505(6), CP 154-327. Longo's attorney confirmed during the forfeiture hearing that he strategically sought to litigate the suppression issue in the forfeiture proceeding because the attorney fee provision placed him potentially in a better position. CP 154-327 (RP 9, 1/3/13 forfeiture proceeding transcript). Given that forfeiture hearings are limited in scope, expedited and the forfeiting agency has limited recourse to appeal legal issues in light of costs and attorney fees it risks incurring pursuant to the forfeiture statute in pursuing an appeal, this court should not find the prior forfeiture hearing fairly litigated or resulted in a final decision on the merits.

Finally, this Court should determine the State of Washington and the City of Bellingham was not in privity with each other in contrast to the decision in <u>Barlindal</u>, 84 Wash. App. 135. Privity "denotes a mutual or successive relationship to the same right or property." <u>Id. citing, Owens</u> <u>v. Kuro</u>, 56 Wash. 2d 564, 354 P.2d 696, 696 (1960). In Barlindal, the Court determined Bonney Lake, who handled the forfeiture proceedings and Pierce County, who sought to criminally prosecute Barlindal, had a

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