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

D. ARGUMENT 

1. Longo cross-appealed the ruling of the trial court rejecting the Kynaston 
rationale argument. Since Divisions 3 and 1 in Ellis and Reis has now rejected 
the Kynaston's interpretation of the 2012 amendments to the Washington 
Medical Marijuana Act, Longo acknowledges his argument has been rejected 
but preserves here his position in the event the Washington Supreme Court 
overturns Ellis and Reis. 
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2. This court should decline the invitation to create an exemption from issue 
preclusion for judgments of the District Court in civil forfeitures cases 
brought pursuant to RCW 69.50.505 and affirm the decision of the Superior 
Court correctly applying the principles of collateral estoppel. 

This case presents the issue of whether there should be an exemption under the 

norm rules for application of issue preclusion in criminal cases, at least where the charge 

in question is a felony offense. But this proposed exemption would primarily operate in 

the area of civil forfeitures under RCW 69.50.505 in cases where simultaneous with the 

initiation of the criminal prosecution, the state or one of its subdivisions, here the police 

department of the City of Bellingham, commences, at the same time that the criminal 

prosecution is commenced by the Prosecuting Attorney, an action to forfeit property. 

Distilled down to its base, the state is presenting the following exemption argument- the 

matter of the prosecution of drug offense felonies in the Superior Court is paramount and 

a special exemption, if you will, ought be created, to diminish the authority of the District 

Court, in the hierarchy of the courts, and make any final ruling on the merits not binding 

upon the Superior Court in the same factual incident. In effect, the norm rules of issue 

preclusion ought be stretched to create a new exception which would subordinate final 

rulings on the merits of a case properly before the District Court, to the interests of the 

executive branch of government as embodied in the power of the County Prosecuting 

Attorney to have unfettered discretion to prosecute crimes.! 

! This may have been pointed out before the District Court, as here, the state in the prosecution of the 
criminal offense, and the City of Bellingham as the plaintiff in the forfeiture action can work together as 
they are on the same team. The seizing police department can decline to prosecute the forfeiture to avoid a 
collateral estoppel problem; the state can encourage the police department pursuing the forfeiture to appeal 
adverse rulings and agree to indemnify the agency for attorney fees should the appeal be unsuccessful. The 
proposed solution by the state is to make no accommodation and to just exempt the Superior Court from 
being bound by the District Court rulings. 
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In other words, the problem presented in this case is the result of the spawning of 

two simultaneous prosecutions against the citizen who is charged with a drug offense. 

The first is the criminal prosecution as here for growing marijuana. The second is a 

forfeiture action under RCW 69.50.505. That statute allows the police agency that makes 

the arrest and seizes property; as for example, finds a substantial sum of cash money at 

the site of an "illegal" marijuana grow operation or seizes a valuable car used to transport 

drugs, that agency has fifteen (15) days to initiate a forfeiture action against that property 

under RCW 69.50.505. Typically, the police agency that executes the search warrant 

possess the written form notice of the commencement of forfeiture proceedings and serve 

a copy on the owner of the property at the time the property is seized. This commences 

the forfeiture action. All police agencies aggressively pursue these forfeitures. RCW 

69.50.505 (9) (a) provides that 90% of the value of the items forfeiture go directly to the 

police agency involved. The forfeiture action the Bellingham Police department 

commenced in this case was to forfeit currency found at the site of the growing operation. 

There is no case taking such as extreme position and arguing that a particular 

court per se, here it is the Whatcom County District Court, rulings otherwise entitled to 

issue preclusive application, is not so entitled in a class of cases, here criminal cases, 

which are so important as to disqualify an entire court for the norm operation of the 

principles of collateral estoppel. The prosecuting authority is asking this court to 

diminish the District Court, arguing that for some reason the District Court is inadequate 

to resolve cases before it and have norm rules of application of its judgments be followed 

and recognized in the law. The application of the norm issue of issue preclusion should 

not be permitted to District Court judgments. It should be pointed out that the effect of 
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such a new startling precedent in effect finding that the District Court of Washington is 

not a court from which issue preclusion can come, has on the citizen litigant. 

Where a criminal prosecution and a forfeiture action are commenced 

simultaneously, there will be twin judicial proceedings in which many of the issues will 

be identical- such as here - under the state proposed exemption or exception, the parties 

will litigate the same issue simultaneously with neither party getting any advantage until 

the Superior Court rules. 

3. This court should stay consideration until the Washington Supreme Court 
resolves the Ellis and Reis cases. The court should adopt the rationale of the 
Superior Court and affirm its ruling of dismissal based upon collateral 
estoppel. 

The Superior Court dismissed this case based upon collateral estoppel because it 

found that the Whatcom County District Court was a court oflaw, had jurisdiction of the 

subject matter and the parties and was competent to make the ruling it did, which was 

identical to the issue to be decided in the Superior Court and was thus entitled to 

collateral estoppel effect. This ruling is sound and should be adopted by this court. The 

state should be put to answering the question as to whether they can marshal one 

published decision from an American appellate court, which disqualifies another court 

from qualifying for issue preclusive effect to its judgments. 

4. This court should affIrm application of collateral estoppel because the issue 
was identical and the parties were in privity and each party had a full and fair 
opportunity to litigate the issue of probable cause before a competent court 
and jurist. 
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The state's argument is that the District Court resolution of the case was not a full and 

final resolution of the issues regarding the validity of search warrant. The court should 

understand that the transcript of the testimony in support of the search warrant was the 

same before the Whatcom County District Court and the Whatcom County Superior 

Court. In its brief, the state presents lengthy argument that the District Court erred in 

reviewing the search warrant testimony de novo, rather than on an abuse of discretion 

standard; see State's Appeal Brief at page 10. The state cites State v. Jackson, 432,688 

P.2d 136 (1984) as authority for this proposition. Appellate court review legal 

conclusions regarding evidence suppression de novo, State v. Mendez, 137 Wn2d 208, 

214,970 P.2d 722 (1999). Appellate courts also review de novo whether qualifying 

sworn information as a whole presents probable cause supporting a search warrant, In re 

Det of Petersen 145 Wn2d 789, 42 P.3d 952 (2002); see alsoSt~t~y, _Qill:Yi.n,J99 

Yf.~.~.h ,~(t74~~f49, ... 7_Q1J~J_Q_ l~(j_9-L4J!Q92 . 

The state cites State v. Barnes 85 Wn2d 638, 932 P.2d 669 (1997). But Barnes is 

of no avail as Barnes is a case where the requirement of identity of issue was clearly not 

satisfied. That is not the case here. 

The next case cited State v. Catlett 133 Wn2d 355,945 P.2d 700 (1997). Catlett 

was the end of the double jeopardy argument made as a result of the United States 

Supreme Court's changing rules on double jeopardy in forfeiture cases and the ultimate 

ruling that the confiscation of property resulting from a civil forfeiture coupled with a 

criminal prosecution is not excessive punishment under 8th amendment. The issues 

resolved in Catlett are irrelevant to the facts of the instant case. 
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The state argues that the issue of probable cause is different in a civil forfeiture 

than in a criminal proceeding; see pages 11, 12 top, citing Barlindal v. City of Bonney 

Lake 84 Wa. App. 135, 141,925 P.2d 1289 (1996) for probable cause to forfeit and State 

v. Garcia 63 Wa. App. 868, 871, 824 P.2d 1220 (1992), probable cause to search. This is 

a smoke screen as the issue of probable cause was the same before the issuing magistrate, 

the Whatcom County District Court Judge and the Whatcom County Superior Court 

Judge. There is obviously an identity of issue. In Deeter v. Smith, 106 Wn2d 376, 721 

P.2d 519 (1986) the Washington Supreme Court held that the Fourth Amendment right 

against unreasonable searches and seizures applied in forfeiture proceedings, citing One 

1958 Plymouth Sedan v. Pennsylvania 380 U.S. 693, 700-702, 85 S.Ct. 1246, 14 L.Ed2d 

170 (1965). The Washington Supreme Court in Deeter also ruled that the drugs seized in 

the illegal search of Deeter's car could not be used in the forfeiture and that the forfeiture 

was appropriately dismissed, which is what happened in the instant case except that the 

District Court ruled first. 

The state also cites other cases in support of its claim that a broad exemption 

against collateral estoppel be imposed upon the District Court. One is Mead v. Park Place 

Properties, 37 Wa. App. 403, 681 P.2d 256 (1984). 

Mead v. Park Place Properties 37 Wa. App. 403, 681 P.2d 256 (1984) is a case 

where Mead was a grocery store in Park Place's Shopping Mall. Mead sued Park Place 

for breach of lease obligation and trespass and Park Place counterclaimed and asked for 

damages, principally Y:z of expenses incurred by Park Place in paving the common 

parking lot, just under $83,000. Then in a separate action, Park Place brought an 
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unlawful detainer action against Mead. Mead tried to consolidate the actions but the 

Superior Court denied the request. 

Mead prevailed in the unlawful detainer action before a jury, which was affirmed 

by the Court of Appeals. When that unlawful detainer action became final, Mead moved 

and succeeded in getting Park Place's counterclaim for damages dismissed because of 

collateral estoppel. 

The Court of Appeals reversed. Collateral estoppel did not apply for a number of 

reasons; one was the impossibility of determining what was the basis for the jury's 

decision. 

Longo's case is a simple repetitive circumstance involving application of 

collateral estoppel. Barlindal v. City of Bonney Lake 84 Wa. App. 135,925 P.2d 1289 

(1996) and Deeter v. Smith 106 Wn2d 376, 721 P.2d 519 (1986) find Superior Court 

resolution of probable cause in the criminal case in reviewing a search warrant identical 

to the probable cause issue presented in the forfeiture action when the judge rules on the 

property owner's motion to suppress the search warrant. The state cites Barlindahl to 

argue absence of priviity. Barlindahl is precedent for showing identity of issue. 

Also cited is Kennedy v. City of Seattle 94 Wn2d 376, 617 P.2d 713 (1980). 

Kennedy owned two moorage sites in Seattle. One he rented to McGuire. Kennedy sued 

Seattle claiming its ordinance prevented him from evicting McGuire and was 

unconstitutional. 

Prior to this suit, Kennedy had been cited for criminal violation of the same 

ordinance. Kennedy prevailed when the criminal prosecution brought by the City of 
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Seattle was dismissed on the ground that the ordinance was unconstitutional. The City of 

Seattle did not appeal and that judgment became final. 

When the case of the constitutionality of the ordinance reached the Washington 

Supreme Court in his civil litigation, Kennedy claimed that Seattle Municipal Court 

adjudication that the ordinance was unconstitutional in the criminal prosecution was 

binding on this issue based upon collateral estoppel. 

The Washington Supreme Court dispensed with this argument swiftly refusing to 

permit the Seattle Municipal Court adjudication affect the rights and positions of hundred 

of persons affected by this ordinance. There are no implications in this case beyond the 

particular facts and circumstances of Mr. Longo's case. 

The state also cites Barlindal v. City of Bonney Lake 84 Wa. App. 135, 141,925 

P.2d 1289 (1996) for the principle of showing no privity between Bellingham, as 

subdivision of the State of Washington, and the State. But Barlindal is of no help. 

Barlindal is the flip side of the forfeiture conundrum. Barlindal moved quickly in his 

criminal prosecution in the Superior Court and obtained a ruling that the search warrant, 

which authorized entry into his home, was unlawful. This adjudication resulted in the 

dismissal of the criminal charges against Barlindal. As here, the police agency involved 

was a city police department, City of Bonney Lake. There, the Court of Appeals rejected 

the argument that the City of Bonney Lake and the State were not in privity, stating: 

Privity denotes a mutual or successive relationship to the same right or 
property .Qy{~D~y,K!1rQ,?2_ W~~h,~~t~2:tl~4_r!_~g _§9&j12(9). Our 
analysis leads us to hold that Pierce County and Bonney Lake were in 
privity under the facts of this case. The facts show that Pierce County and 
Bonney Lake had a mutual interest and shared a common purpose in a 
successful prosecution of Barlindahl as well as a successful forfeiture of 
his possessions: 
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• Both Pierce County and Bonney Lake were acting on authority of state 
law; 
• Both participated in the acquisition of a search warrant and the 
subsequent search; 
• Both had a unity of purpose in securing Barlindal's conviction with 
lawfully obtained evidence; 
• Either Pierce County or Bonney Lake could have been the "seizing 
agency" entitled to bring the forfeiture action; 

These factors demonstrate that Bonney Lake and Pierce County were in 
privity from beginning to end. Their mutual objective was to work 
together to lawfully obtain evidence; they both sought to obtain a criminal 
conviction; and both could have benefited financially from either a 
successful prosecution or a successful civil forfeiture. Bonney Lake's 
argument that it was not in privity with Pierce County because it did not 
have an opportunity to present its arguments concerning the validity of the 
search is without merit. It is the obligation of a county prosecuting 
attorney to control a felony prosecution; the inability of a municipal 
attorney to control the prosecution does not diminish the common interests 
that both agencies have in the outcome of the prosecution, 84 Wa. App. at 
143. 

Lastly, the state argues that applying collateral estoppel from forfeitures to 

criminal cases is unjust and contravenes public policy. But the cases cited State v. 

Cleveland 58 Wash. App. 634, 794 P.2d 546 (1990), and State v. Vasquez 148 Wn2d 

303, 59 P.3d 648 (2002) are cases where an estoppel is sought from an administrative 

ruling. The ruling from which the estoppel springs here is a ruling and adjudication of the 

District Court, which had jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter. 

The states also cites State v. Mullin-Coston 152 Wn2d 107,95 P.3d 321 (2204). 

Mullin-Coston was a criminal case in which the Washington Supreme Court determined 

whether the doctrine of nonmutual collateral estoppel applied in criminal cases where the 

basis for asserting preclusion was a jury verdict in the case of another defendant. The 

Washington Supreme Court declined to apply the doctrine in such cases and held that 
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issues decided by one defendant's jury is not binding on a jury in the later trial of a 

different defendant. 

Reninger v. State Department of Corrections 134 Wn2d 437,951 P.2d 782 (1992) 

is cited by the state but in that case, collateral estoppel was applied to an agency action. 

CONCLUSION 

The exclusionary rule is applicable to forfeitures as well as to criminal cases; 

Deeter v. Smith 106 Wn2d 376, 721 P.2d 519 (1986). Where the execution of a search 

warrant results in the discovery of evidence which supports a criminal action for growing 

marijuana and, as well, a forfeiture action based upon the same incident and same search 

warrant, it is reasonable to expect that the defense bar will attack the integrity of the 

search warrant in both forums. The database for the search warrant is the testimony 

presented to secure that warrant. The decision called on by the District Court Judge or 

the Superior Judge in deciding the question of probable cause is identical. The result is 

also identical because the exclusionary rule deprives the prosecuting authority with the 

capacity to prosecute. Such is the case as is conceded by the state in its seeking 

discretionary ruling- that the effect of the Superior Court ruling was to eliminate totally

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